1991

Lily Pond Associates; and Shopko Stores Inc., dba  
Uvalco, a Minnesota Corporation v. Lyman W.  
Hemmert, Michael Hemmert, Linda Hemmert,  
and Bushnell Motel, and John Does I Through X :  
Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The authority which confers jurisdiction on the Court to hear this Appeal is Article VIII, Section 3, Utah State Constitution; Utah Code Annotated section 78-2-2, Rule 3(i), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

## ISSUES

1. Whether the trial court erred by ruling in favor of

Respondent/Plaintiffs on its Motion for Summary Judgment when Defendant/Appellants had established that the sign was appurtenant to the property when deeded to Respondent/Plaintiffs.

The standard of review to be applied to this issue is correctness without deference to the trial court, because where there have been no assessment of the credibility of witnesses or their competence to testify, the appellate court is in as good a position as the trial court to find the facts based upon the written record. In Re Infant Anonymous, 760 P.2d 916 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).

2. Whether the trial court erred by granting Summary Judgment in favor of Plaintiff/Respondents when the ultimate fact of easement is whether Defendant/ Appellants prescriptive or implied easement should have been given to the jury.

The standard of review to be applied to this issue is again the correctness of the trial court's decision without deference. Bailey v. Call, 767 P.2d 138 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).

3. Whether Summary Judgment was appropriate when a question of fact existed concerning the matter of the easement. The facts were raised by the pleadings and affidavits.

The standard of review to be applied is the correctness

standard. In Re Infant Anonymous, 760 P.2d 916 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

### DETERMINATIVE STATUTES AND RULES

Utah Const. art. I Section 10:

"In capital cases the right of trial by jury shall remain inviolate. In courts of general jurisdiction, except in capital cases, a jury shall consist of eight jurors. In courts of inferior jurisdiction a jury shall consist of four jurors. In criminal cases the verdict shall be unanimous. In civil cases three-fourths of the jurors may find a verdict. A jury in civil cases shall be waived unless demanded."

Utah Code Annot. section 78-21-2 (1953):

"All questions of fact, where the trial is by jury, other than those mentioned in the next section [78-21-3], are to be decided by the jury, and all evidence thereon is addressed to them except when otherwise provided."

Utah Code Annot. section 78-21-1 (1953):

"In actions for the recovery of specific real or personal property, with or without damages or for money claimed for injuries, an issue of fact may be tried by a jury, unless a jury trial is waived or a reference is ordered."

Utah Code Annot. section 78-40-1 (1953):

"An action may be brought by any person against another who claims an estate or interest in real property or an interest or claim to personal property adverse to him, for the purpose of determining such adverse claim."

Rule 38(a), Utah R. Civ. P.:

"(a) **Right preserved.** The right of trial by jury as declared by the constitution or as given by statute shall be preserved to the parties."

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### **a. Nature of the Case**

This is an Appeal from a civil Order Granting Summary Judgment and Summary Judgment by the Honorable F.L. Gunnell, District Judge in the First Judicial District Court of Box Elder County.

#### **b. Course of the Proceedings and Disposition at the Trial Court**

Lily Pond Associates brought this action in the First District Court of Box Elder County to quiet title in their property against the claimed right of Defendants to maintain a sign advertising their motel on the premises. Lily Pond Associates moved for Summary Judgment, which Trial Court Judge Gunnell in his Findings and Ruling and Memorandum Decision, decided in favor of Plaintiffs.

#### **c. Relevant Facts**

1. Appellants are owners of a sign which was on the subject property for over forty years. The owners contract



of purchase specifically outlined the sign and the property on which it is situated. The sign had been used continuously, openly, hostilely and adversely at its present location for over forty years.

2. The sign was visible as an appurtenance, encroachment, hereditament and structure upon the property in question.

The Plaintiff/Respondents purchased the property subject to any appurtenances or encroachments existing thereon.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The defendants established that the easement was appurtenant by satisfying requirements of appurtenance as described by the Utah Supreme Court in Hampton v. State Road Commission, 21 Utah 2d 342, 445 P.2d 708, 710 (1968). In this case the sign was obviously permanent and it was obvious to anyone driving by or walking by that it was being used. The Land owner should have made some attempt to get rid of the sign before if they did not want it there. There is a legal presumption that there was a grant of easement in favor of defendants because the landowner had the power to remove the sign and never did.

Whether or not there was a prescriptive easement and whether the possession by defendant of the property by

placing a sign on the property was adverse is an ultimate fact upon which the jury would base a decision as to whom should prevail in this case. Ultimate facts are not to be withheld from the jury. This is a question regarding the possession of property in that the sign was on the Plaintiffs' property but had been used for forty years. This involves a right to a jury trial which was denied by the court granting summary judgment.

Summary judgment is not appropriate where there is a question of fact raised by the pleadings and affidavits that is material to the resolution of the case. Summary judgment was not appropriate here because there was an issue of material fact concerning the existence of some kind of easement, whether prescriptive or implied raised by the pleadings and affidavits.

#### ARGUMENT

**I. THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED PREJUDICIAL ERROR BY RULING IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS WHEN THE DEFENDANTS ESTABLISHED THAT THEIR SIGN WAS APPURTENANT TO THE PROPERTY.**

Appurtenant means that the right passes with the title to the land the right is attached to. When an easement is appurtenant it means that the right of use of one person's land for the benefit of another piece of land is a legal right that passes with title of either piece of property. The right of the owner of the "dominant estate" to use of the "servient estate" remains if title to the servient estate

changes when the easement or right to use is appurtenant.

The Utah Supreme Court has said:

" . . . All easements of a permanent character, that have been created i favor of the land sold, that have been created in favor of the land sold, and which are open and plain to be seen, and are reasonably necessary for its use and convenient enjoyment, unless expressly reserved by the grantors, pass as appurtenances to the land." Hampton v. State Road Commission, 21 Utah 2d 342, 445 P.2d 708, 710 (1968).

In the present case the sign was of a permanent nature, having been erected to stand permanently, which it did for forty or more years. The placement of the sign was open and continuous and plain to be seen. The use of the land by having the sign placed where it was located was reasonably necessary for the use and convenient enjoyment of the property where the Bushnell Motel is located, because it draws the attention of potential customers to the location of the motel and gives them directions as to how to get there, which potential customers would not know or even think of stopping there without there being a sign to direct them and let them know that there is a motel near by.

The grantors of the servient estate in this case--the U.S. Government and Brigham City--did not expressly reserve the rights in their deed, thus the easement passed with the property as an appurtenant easement.

The Utah Supreme Court has also indicated:

" . . . In order to settle rights in land to the benefit of the persons profitably using the land and to avoid the impossible burden of proving an ancient, actual grant to use the property, the courts of this country early adopted the legal fiction of a lost grant, whereby proof of continuous use for the prescriptive period, openly and with knowledge of the landowner, was sufficient to raise a presumption of grant, which in effect was a positive rule of law. The fact that the grantor with knowledge of such use, makes no protest against it is proof of his recognition of a claim of right in the grantee. In other words, it is conclusively presumed from the landowner's acquiescence for the defined period of time in the other's user of his land, he having the right and power to stop such user. Tiffany on Real Property sections 1191-1196. . . ." Lunt v. Kitchens, Utah, 260 P.2d 535, 537 (1953).

In the present case the Defendants in their Affidavit in Opposition to Summary Judgment state under oath that the sign has stood in its place on Plaintiffs' land for over 40 years. According to Utah law as cited above, it is thus presumed that the use of the land is by way of grant, because the predecessors in ownership never in 40 years, made any attempt to stop the use of their property.

II. THE TRIAL COURT VIOLATED DEFENDANTS' RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL ON THE ISSUE OF POSSESSION OF THE LAND ON WHICH THEIR SIGN WAS PLACED BY GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND THEREBY WITHHOLDING AN ULTIMATE FACT FROM THE JURY.

The Defendants in this case had a right to a jury trial

on the issue whether an easement in their favor existed and what type of easement it may be. The Utah Code states in pertinent part:

"In actions for the recovery of specific real or personal property, with or without damages . . . an issue of fact may be tried by a jury unless a jury trial is waived. . ." Utah Code Annot. section 78-21-1 (1953).

The Utah Supreme Court interpreted the same provision and had this to say:

". . . It is our opinion that the above language, if given a reasonable and rational construction, must be interpreted as declaring that all issues of fact relating to possession and right to possession of specific real or personal property may be determined by a jury unless a jury trial is waived . . . ." Holland v. Wilson, 8 Utah 2d 11, 14-15, 327 P.2d 250, 252 (1958).

More recently the Utah Supreme Court has said:

". . . There is a right to a jury trial on all questions of fact in any action to determine the right to possession of real property. Holland v. Wilson, 8 Utah 2d 11, 14-15, 327 P.2d 250, 252 (1958); See Utah Code Ann. section 78-21-1 (1987); Utah R. Civ. P. 38(a). The present case is clearly one to determine the right to possess real property. Therefore the Hansens were entitled to have the question of the location of the corner determined by the judge only if that question is one of law." Hansen v. Stewart, 761 P.2d 14, 15 (Utah 1988).

In the present case the main issue is one of the right

of Defendants to place a sign and maintain it on Plaintiffs' land. This is clearly a question of fact concerning an interest in real property. Thus by a straight forward reading and application of the above law, Defendants had the right to a jury trial which was denied by the Court's granting summary judgment.

The Utah Supreme Court has also said:

" . . . We are convinced from the whole record that there was substantial contradictory evidence on both sides which, in recognition of well established rights guaranteed by our state constitution, statutes and rules, and the authorities generally, required giving the case to the jury. . . ." Finlayson v. Brady, 121 Utah 204, 240 P.2d 491, 492 (1952).

In the present case Defendant maintains that his contract specifically mentions the use of the sign and property in question (See Affidavit of Michael Hemmert in Opposition to Summary Judgment), while Plaintiffs maintain that no trace can be seen on the record of title of any mention of a grant of an easement to Defendants (See Paragraph 12 of Memorandum in Support of Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment). These two pieces of facts in themselves are substantially contradictory and the question should have been sent to the jury on this basis.

The Utah Supreme Court has said:

". . . In International Harvester Credit Corp. v. Pioneer Tractor, Utah, 626 P.2d 418 (1981), we held that Article I section 10 of the Utah Constitution guarantees the right to trial by jury on legal issues in civil cases. That basic right is also codified in the Judicial Code, U.C.A. 1953, section 78-21-1. Several issues raised by appellants in their complaint were triable by jury, and if resolution of those issues were necessary to proper disposition of this case, we would be obliged to remand this case for determination by the jury. . . ." Welch Transfer and Storage v. Oldham, 663 P.2d 73, 75-76 (Utah 1983).

In the instant case the issue of whether an easement in favor of Defendants exists is triable by jury and the resolution of that issue is necessary to the proper disposition of this case because it is the central issue in the whole dispute. Thus the Supreme Court is "obliged to remand this case for trial before a jury."

An ultimate fact is one that should never be determined by the Court, in any case tried to a jury or to be tried to a jury. Texas City Transp. Co. v. Winter, 222 S.W. 541, 542 (Tex. App. 1920). In the instant case the main issue is one involving a right to use and possession of property and one for which the right to a jury trial is guaranteed. Thus the fact to be determined is an ultimate fact and should have been left to a jury to decide.

III. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS IMPROPER BECAUSE THERE WAS A GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT CONCERNING THE EXISTENCE OF THE EASEMENT AND WHETHER THE POSSESSION OF THE PROPERTY WHERE THE

SIGN WAS POSTED CONSTITUTED ADVERSE POSSESSION.

The Utah Supreme Court has said concerning the grant of summary judgment:

" . . . It is a well-settled principle of law that summary judgment can only be granted when there is no dispute as to a material fact. Russell v. Park City Utah Corp., 29 Utah 2d 184, 506 P.2d 1274 (1973); Controlled Receivables, Inc. v. Harman, 17 Utah 2d 420, 413 P.2d 807 (1966). The purpose of summary judgment is to save the expense and time of the parties and the court, and if the party being ruled against could not prevail when the facts are looked at most favorably for his position, then summary judgment should be granted. Holbrook Co. V. Adams, Utah, 542 P.2d 191 (1975). If there is a question of fact raised by the pleadings or affidavits, the court is precluded from granting summary judgment. Hatch v. Sugarhouse Finance Co., 20 Utah 2d 156, 434 P. 2d 758 (1967)." Grow v. Marwick Development, Inc., 621 P.2d 1249, 1252 (Utah 1980).

In the present case a material fact was raised by the pleadings and affidavits concerning the existence of an easement in favor of the Defendants. Defendants' Affidavit showed that the sign sat on Plaintiffs' land for more than 40 years. Yet Plaintiffs predecessors in interest never made any effort to make Defendants move the sign.

As discussed before, Plaintiffs' Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment states that a check of the title records discloses no grant in favor of Defendants' use of the property for the sign, and Defendants'



affidavit in Opposition to Summary Judgment declares that their sales contract specifically mentions the sign. This would create as before discussed a question of fact for the jury, a material fact. It also creates a presumption of grant to the Defendants when considered with the fact that no move was ever made to make Defendants move the sign. These facts as discussed are enough to defeat a motion for summary judgment.

#### CONCLUSION


There is a presumption that some kind of easement exists in favor of the user of land owned by another when the landowner does not object or take any action to discontinue the user. This stems from the theory of lost grant. This created a question of fact to be determined by the jury which should have been granted because there is a right to jury trial guaranteed by constitution and statute for cases involving the right to possession of interests in land.

The defendants in this case had an appurtenant easement or at least the question should have been sufficiently raised by the pleadings and affidavits when defendant satisfied at least most of the requirements for an appurtenant easement as well as a presumed grant of easement.

Defendants respectfully request that the Utah Supreme