1991

Lily Pond Associates; and Shopko Stores Inc., dba
Uvalco, a Minnesota Corporation v. Lyman W.
Hemmert, Michael Hemmert, Linda Hemmert,
and Bushnell Motel, and John Does I through X :
Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Annotated § 78-2-2(3)(j) (Supp. 1990) and Rule 3(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure to consider this appeal from the order of the First Judicial District Court for Box Elder County, granting the motion of Plaintiffs for summary judgment against Defendants.

III STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The sole issues presented by this appeal are:

(1) Whether the lower court erred in entering summary judgment against Defendants. The standard of review is whether or not there was a genuine issue of material fact upon which these issues could properly be submitted to a trier of fact. Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 56(c); Webber v. Sill, 675 P.2d 1170 (Utah 1983).

(2) Whether or not the Appellants appeal is frivolous or made for purposes of delay so as to subject to the Appellant to damages under the provisions of Rule 33 Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. That standard of review for this determination is whether the appeal was not grounded in fact, not warranted by existing law, or not based on a good faith argument to extend, modify, or reverse existing law.

IV. DETERMINATIVE RULES AND STATUTES

Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and Rule 4-

501 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration (Amended 1990) are critical to this appeal. Rule 56(c) provides in pertinent part:

(c)...The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleading, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law...

(e)...When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported [by affidavit] as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of his pleading, but his response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. If he does not so respond, summary judgment,, if appropriate, shall be entered against him.

Rule 4-501(5) of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration provides in part:

The points and authorities in opposition to a motion for summary judgment shall begin with a section that contains a concise statement of material facts as to which the party contends a genuine issue exists. Each disputed fact shall be stated in separate numbered sentences and shall refer with particularity to those portions of the record upon which the opposing party relies, and, if applicable, shall state the numbered sentence or sentences of the movant's facts that are disputed. All material facts set forth in the movant's statement shall be deemed admitted for the propose of summary judgment unless specifically controverted by the opposing parties' statement.

The statute which is determinative of one of the primary issues raised in this appeal is Utah Code Annotated § 78-12-13; which is reproduced as an exhibit in Appendix A.

V. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS RELEVANT TO APPEAL

The facts pertinent to this appeal are those set forth in

the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. Since Defendants did not specifically controvert any of those facts in opposition to Plaintiffs motion, this Court must take those facts as established under Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and Rule 4-501 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration. Those facts, as set forth in the record below, as well as relevant procedural facts, are as follows:

1. Plaintiff, Shopko Stores Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "SHOPKO"), purchased the subject property, upon which the Defendants' sign is located, from the Co-Plaintiff, Lily Pond Associates (hereinafter "Lily Pond"), on or about August 9, 1989.

2. Lily Pond purchased the property from the Brigham City Redevelopment Agency, a governmental agency, on or about June 5, 1987.

3. Brigham city Redevelopment Agency acquired the property by Warranty Deed for Brigham City Corporation, a municipal corporation, on or about July 18, 1985.

4. Brigham City Corporation acquired the property from the United States of America, Department of Interior, by deeds dated May 11, 1977; March 29, 1983; and January 22, 1985.

5. The United States of America acquired the property for the purpose of establishing a Veteran's Hospital in September 1942.

6. Therefore, the property was continuous ownership by governmental entities from September, 1942 to June, 1987, a

period of approximately 45 years.

7. The property was in private ownership, in the name of the Plaintiffs, for a period of only 26 months prior to the filing of Plaintiffs' Complaint.

8. Plaintiffs have desired to develop the property for commercial purposes and have commenced construction of a shopping center on the property.

9. The Defendants are the purported owners of a sign advertising the Bushnell Motel. That sign is located on a portion of the above-described property.

10. The sign was located on the portion of Plaintiffs' property which is adjacent to the Main Street in Brigham City, is within an existing 20 foot utility easement, and the sign has overhung the public sidewalk, contrary to local ordinances.

11. A search of the records at the Box Elder County Recorder's Office establishes that there has never been an instrument recorded establishing a legal interest, in favor of Defendants, in the property upon which the sign is located.

12. Plaintiffs' counsel, by letter dated May 18, 1989, made demand on Defendants that they remove the sign from the premises.

13. Defendants, through their attorney, advised Plaintiffs that it claimed an interest in the property and refused to move the sign. Defendants claimed they have either a valid "prescriptive easement", "appurtenant easement". and/or "easement by implication".

14. According to the information provided by Defendants,

the sign has been located on the property for forty years.

(Defendants' Answer to Interrogatory No. 8). Defendants purchased the motel, together with any interest in the sign, in 1967.

Even though the facts recited above are conclusively established by Defendants failure to controvert them below, Defendants attempt to introduce new alleged facts and inferences in their brief on appeal. This attempt to introduce new allegations does not create a genuine issue of material facts; accordingly, the Court should not even consider those alleged facts. Nevertheless, Plaintiff disputes the following alleged facts contained in Appellants statement of the case with appropriate citations to the record as to the true facts:

1. Contrary to Defendants assertion, agreement for sale between Defendant and his predecessor in interest, did not warrant the property on which the sign was located. Paragraph 7 of exhibit "B" attached to Defendants' exhibit "A" in response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production of Documents clearly shows that the seller warranted title to the sign but merely quit-claimed whatever interest they may have had in the property upon which the sign was located. (See Exhibit B) The specific language used by sellers should have placed the Defendants on notice they had no real interest in the property upon which the sign was located.

2. Contrary to Defendants assertion, Plaintiffs did not purchase the property from Brigham City Redevelopment Agency

subject to any appurtenances or encroachments existing thereon, as evidenced by the Warranty Deed dated June 8, 1987, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

VI. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Defendants brief is an impermissible attempt to reargue the motion lost below based upon new factual allegations unsupported by the record and legal arguments that they failed or chose not to raise at any time in the summary judgment proceedings below. Since these new factual allegations and legal theories could not in any way have formed the basis of the lower Court's decision, Defendant improperly attacks that decision as erroneous. The uncontroverted facts conclusively established that Plaintiff is entitled to judgment as a matter of law; therefore, the lower Court's judgment in favor of Plaintiff must be affirmed.

Even though Defendant's brief is filled almost entirely with new factual allegations and legal arguments that were not sufficiently presented below, those arguments still lack merit and in no way require reversal of the lower Court's judgment. The fundamental flaw in Defendants' arguments is that they fail to recognize that there are factual prerequisites necessary to establish a right of easement in another's property and that those prerequisites are totally absent in this case.

Prescriptive easement can only be obtained through adverse use and possession of another's property and adverse possession could not legally have occurred in this case because the property

in question was owned by a governmental entities for a period exceeding the life of the sign.

Further, Defendants claim of appurtenant easement also fails because of Defendants failure to establish the factual basis upon which this claim could be granted, as a matter of law.

The lower Court correctly granted Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment since there were no genuine issues of material fact. Appellants failed to controvert any of the material facts set forth in the memorandum and affidavit Plaintiff submitted to the Court below. Since, as a matter of undisputed fact, there was absolutely no notice of any easement or any other interest in the subject property available through the usual means at the Box Elder County Recorder's Office, Defendants' claim of some property right must be based upon the existence of facts sufficient to give rise to those claims; and the lower Court's judgment should be affirmed.

VII. ARGUMENT

A. TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT DEFENDANTS HAD NOT ESTABLISHED ANY FACTUAL OR LEGAL BASIS FOR THEIR CLAIM OR APPURTENANT EASEMENT.

To establish the existence of an "appurtenant easement" there must be both a dominant and a servient estate. The trial Court that Defendants' claim of appurtenant easement was not supported by the facts presented. The Defendant claims that property upon which it's motel is located must be the dominant estate and the Plaintiff's property, situated a block distant and upon which

Defendants' sign advertising the motel is located, must be the servient estate. There is no evidence and no claim that these two parcels were ever part of the same property or under common ownership. The time an appurtenant easement is created, the grantor must have some interest in the property being affected by the easement, otherwise the permission for that use would be a trespass and without authorization. An appurtenant easement was not granted in this case as there is no record of its being granted and there is no factual allegation of its being granted by any person in the past. Defendants state that the contract, by which Defendants purchased the motel property, established some interest in the property now owned by Plaintiffs. This allegation is not supported by fact as evidenced by the Uniform Real Estate Contract dated February 1, 1967 and produced by the Defendants as Exhibit "A" to its response to Plaintiffs' Request for Production of Documents, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. The sellers merely granted to Defendants whatever interest, if any, "which they may have to the property upon which the signs are located." Another requirement for establishing appurtenant easement is that the two estates be located adjacent to each other. Vanderbilt Law Review (1986 page 111). This element was not established by Defendants since the parcels are, in fact, separated by one block distance. Further, appurtenant easements have been traditionally imposed for ingress, egress, conveyance of water or similar uses, without which the benefitted parcel is essentially without value. The thing being benefitted

in this case is not the property itself, but the business of operating a motel upon the property. This is not a sufficient basis for an appurtenant easement. Nelson v. Johnson, 679 P.2d 662 (Idaho). The mere existence of a billboard sign on another's property does not give right to an appurtenant easement, Zinser, et al v. Luks, 235 S.W.2d 844. Defendant has merely had the free use of someone else's property for forty years. Defendants' claim of appurtenant easement failed, not because a single factual element was missing, but because no factual elements were established which could support Defendants' theory.

B. THE TRAIL COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT DEFENDANTS HAD NOT ESTABLISHED ANY FACTUAL OR LEGAL BASIS FOR THEIR CLAIMS OF PRESCRIPTIVE EASEMENT OR ADVERSE POSSESSION.

Defendants appear to claim that by merely alleging an easement by prescription, a question of fact arises that must be determined by a jury. Defendants beg the critical question, to-wit: are there questions of fact which, if proven, are sufficient to establish elements for a prescriptive easement? Defendants fail to accept both established common law and statutory mandate that one cannot obtain an interest in the land of another by adverse use or possession when the other property owner is a governmental entity for governmental purposes. Averett v. Utah County Drainage District No. 1, 763 P.2d 428 and Utah Code Annotated § 78-12-13. The property owned by Plaintiff had been under governmental ownership for over 45 years at the time this action was filed. Defendants have claimed that the

sign in question had been in that location for forty years, the commencement of which period was five years into the governmental ownership period. The property in question has only been in private ownership since June, 1987, less than two years prior to Plaintiffs' written notice demanding Defendants remove the sign. It is clear that the period for obtaining an easement by prescription on public land does begin to run until the land has been transferred from public to private ownership. Herbertson v. Iliff, 775 P.2d 754 (New Mex 1989). That short period is insufficient, as a matter of law, to establish a prescriptive or adverse right to possession or use. Crane v. Crane, 683 P.2d 1062 (Utah 1984); Jensen v. Brown, 639 P.2d 150 (Utah 1982). The person claiming a prescriptive easement must establish the necessary elements by clear and convincing evidence. Marchant v. Park City, 771 P.2d 677 (Utah App. 1989); Garmond v. Kinney, 579 P.2d 178 (New Mex 1978). Defendants would only have been entitled to a jury trial if there had been genuine issues of material fact. However, the factual issues were not in dispute, although the legal conclusions which could be drawn from the undisputed facts, were. Simply put, the Defendants provided no factual basis for a claim of prescriptive easement upon which the Court could rule in its favor, since a prescriptive easement requires adverse possession and adverse possession could not have occurred against this property which was owned by governmental entities since 1942.

C. THE TRIAL COURT'S ORDER GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT
SHOULD BE AFFIRMED BECAUSE THERE IS NO GENUINE

ISSUE AS TO ANY MATERIAL FACT AND PLAINTIFF WAS
ENTITLED TO JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW.

Defendants continue to assert that because some factual issues may have been in dispute, the Defendant is necessarily entitled to a trial in this case. The criteria is whether or not there are issues of material fact. Webber v. Sill, 675 P.2d 1170 (Utah 1983). Frankly, Defendants have failed to raise any "genuine issues of material fact".

The United States Supreme Court in Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 106 S.Ct. 2505 (1986), ruled as follows:

"...the mere existence of some alleged factual dispute between the parties will not defeat an otherwise properly supported motion for summary judgment; the requirement is that there be no genuine issue of material fact."

Further, that Court also ruled that

"...there is no issue for trial unless there is sufficient evidence favoring the non-moving party for a jury to return a verdict for that party...if the evidence is merely tolerable...or is not significantly probative...summary judgment may be granted."

Also, additional language, which is helpful in our case, stated that:

the mere existence of a scintilla of evidence in support of (the non-moving party's) position will be insufficient; there must be evidence on which the jury could reasonably find for (that party)."

There are no facts provided by Defendants upon which any of the alleged legal theories can be sustained. Clearly, the undisputed facts establish only that Defendants and their predecessors have enjoyed the unauthorized benefit of another's property without payment, without a recorded interest, and

without any attempt by them to perfect any of their alleged easement claims.

The purpose of summary judgment is well established; to-wit: to avoid the time, expense, and burden of a frivolous trial by reviewing a case as presented by the parties to determine if a genuine issue of fact exists. Webber, at 1172, the United States Supreme Court discussed the question of summary judgment criteria in great length in Celotex Corp. v. Katrett, 106 S.Ct 2548 (1986). The Court there ruled as follows:

In our view, the plain language of Rule 56(c) mandates the entry of summary judgment after adequate time for discovery and upon motion, against the party who fails to make a showing sufficient to establish the existence of an essential element to that party's case, and on which that party will bear the burden of proof at trial. In such a situation, there can be "no genuine issue as to any material fact," since a complete failure of proof concerning an essential element of the non-moving party's case necessarily renders all facts immaterial. The moving party is "entitled to judgment as a matter of law" because the non-moving party has failed to make a sufficient showing of an essential element of (its) case with respect to which (it) has the burden of proof. Celotex, 477 U.S. at 321.

Further, the Celotex Court went on to explain that:

Summary judgment procedure is properly regarded not as a disfavored procedural shortcut, but rather as an integral part of the Federal Rules as a whole, which are designed "to secure the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of every action."

The trial judge below obviously applied these standards in his determination of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and no authority is given which would lead to a contrary result.

D. DEFENDANTS APPEAL HEREIN IS FRIVOLOUS AND THE COURT SHOULD AWARD TO THE PLAINTIFFS JUST DAMAGES.

Rule 33, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure provides that the

Court may assess damages upon a finding that the appeal taken is either frivolous or for delay. A frivolous appeal is defined in Rule 33(b) as follows:

"...one that is not grounded in fact, not warranted by existing law, or not based on a good faith argument to extend, modify, or reverse existing law. An appeal... interposed for the purpose of delay is one interposed for any improper purpose such as to harass, cause needless increase in the cost of litigation, or gain time that will benefit only the party filing the appeal..."

Defendants have been aware from the time counsel received written notice to remove the sign from the property in May, 1989, that the property was subject to a pending sale for use as a shopping center and that the existence of the sign on the property impeded that sale. Prior to filing this lawsuit, Plaintiff offered to pay for the relocation costs of the sign in addition to payment of other sums, as nuisance value to avoid the requirement of extended and expensive litigation. Plaintiff's counsel further provided Defendants with the same basic authority as was used in the motion for summary judgment to establish that Plaintiffs' claims were virtually without merit. Those requests were ignored, forcing the Plaintiffs to file quiet title action, resulting in considerable monetary loss to the Plaintiffs , in addition to legal fees and costs incurred in connection with this case, to date.

Plaintiffs assert that, under the circumstances, treble costs and reasonable attorney fees should be awarded to the Plaintiffs, in addition to affirming the Court's Order for Summary Judgment.

VIII. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing reasons and the file herein, including Plaintiff's Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the decision of the trial Court in granting summary judgment should be sustained and Defendant's appeal denied. The trial Court's decision was well reasoned and based upon the issues raised and factual matters asserted by the parties. The lower Court correctly concluded that the Plaintiffs were entitled to quiet title in the subject property and that Defendants had no legal claim of easement thereto. The facts supporting the lower Courts conclusion are uncontroverted, and the law, which Defendants did not attack below, is clear. The Court should summarily dismiss the arguments and purported factual issues that Defendants seek to raise on appeal. Further, those arguments and purported issues lack merit and do not change the fact that Plaintiffs were and are entitled to quiet title and the Court should affirm in all respects the lower Courts judgment.